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WALKING TRAIL

- Your tour begins at 210 1 Street from the Community Service Office. This was

for_mer]y an apartment complex, recently converted into office space. Exit start
point and turn left on 2" Avenue. The Harkins family built the yellow Victorian
home with wrap around porch in the early 1900’s. It is currently being restored.
There is a lovely butterfly garden behind the house.

At 325 2™ Ave is the Edward Rose House. Built in 1898, this queen Anne
Victorian was restored and converted into a B&B in 1994.

Right on 3" to Temple Avenue (! block)

326 Temple Avenue is the home of the Fayette County Memorial Library. The
library was first started by a group of ladies in 1922, The first permanent
structure in its present location was constructed in 1956 and has been added onto
four or five times since that time. It houses between 44,000 and 45,000 volumes
and has an extensive genealogy department.

NOTE: The First Methodist church at 412 Temple was built in 1923. The
Italianate style building with a bell tower and Spanish Tile roof makes a pretty
contrast to other structures in town. Talluah Bankhead (a famous actress) and her
family donated the center front stained glass window.

The First Baptist Church at 432 Temple Avenue built in the Federal style was
erected in 1925 (it was previously housed in a wooden structure). The heart pine
(no knots) floors are original to the building. The wood floors in the vestibule and
choir loft were refinished in 2003. The church celebrated its 100" birthday in
July of 2000.

Left on Temple to 5™ Street (2 blocks)

Left on 5™ to 3" Avenue (3" Ave. will first go off to right. Pass this and go to
where 3 Ave. goes to where 3 Ave, goes to the left) (4blocks)

Left on 3" Ave. to 3" Street (3 blocks)

Right on 3" Street to Columbus Street (4 blocks)

Right on Columbus to 5 Street (2 blocks)

Right on 5™ 10 3™ Wax (4 blocks)

Right on 3" Way to 5" Street (short distance0

Left on 5" to Temple Avenue (4 blocks)

Note: At 530 Temple Ave. is the Civic Center and Fayette Art Museum. An old
elementary school built in 1931; it was renovated in the 1980s. The museum
houses a collection of over 3700 pieces of art including the folk art collections of
Jimmie Lee Sudduth, Reverend Benjamin Perkins, Sybil Gibson and Lois Wilson.
A wide assortment of paintings, sculpture and craft pieces adorn the halls and
walls of the Civic Center. Open to the public.

Left on Temple to 10™ Street (5 blocks)

Shelia’s Five Points Antiques might be a good place to stop. Nice collection of
old and new glassware, furniture, etc.

Left on 10" to first street going left after 3 Avenue (4 blocks)

Turn left and then take right fork to 9™ Street (1 block) Pass St. Michael’s
Episcopal Church. This English style building constructed in 1981 was built on
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land donated to them by the United Daughters of the Confederacy, Fayette
Chapterhl 672. The members of the parish constructed the church building.

20. Cross 9" aﬂd enter cemetery on paved road bearing right. Tour the cemetery and
return to 9. Cemetery has many graves dating back to the 1800s among them is
that of Col. Holland M. Bell who fought in the Civil War. Don Hudson a football
player for the Green Bay packers was laid to rest there.

21. Cross 9" and return to 10" Street (1 block)

22. Right on 10™ to 3" Avenue (1 block)

23. Left on 3" to 11" Street (2 blocks0

24, Right on 11™ to 1** Avenue (1 long block)

25. Left on 1* and then shortly take first right to 2™ Avenue (short distance)

26. Right on 2™ (carefully crossing Temple as it enters 2") to Columbus Street (12
blocks)

27. Note: You will pass Charles’ Cafeteria 226 2" Avenue near the end of this
stretch. It is a local gathering place for hometown flavor and good food at
reasonable prices. Stop in and say hello.

28. Right on Columbus to Temple Avenue (2 blocks)

29. Left on Temple to 1% Street (1 block) Left on 1% Street to 1% Avenue (1 block)

30. Turn right, cross 1% Street and turn right on 1* to return to Temple Avenue (1
block)

31. Across from Bolling Pharmacy was the Turner Hotel, which is still standing. The
bottom floor is still occupied by shops incredibly like those of an earlier era. The
Hotel itself, which occupies the second floor, has been closed for nearly half a
century. Many of the rooms are still wallpapered in floral designs not
manufactured in years. The walls are three layers of brick.

32. Left on Temple. Bolling Pharmacy (originally the Post Office) was built in 1912
after the fire that destroyed the entire downtown.

33. Further down the street, the five-story Cannon building is the tallest building in
town. It was completed in 1924; it was originally designed to be a hotel but did
not meet the fire codes so were never used as a hotel. One interesting note - the
fifth floor has never been used and still looks the way it probably did back in
1928, right down to the oak stair rails. The single story building next door, built
in 1912, is now a law office.

34, The Fayette Depot was built in 1887 when the Georgia pacific railroad opened its
line from Birmingham to Columbus, MS. The dept was restored in 2002 and is
now home to the Historical society’s vast collection. Another great place to stop.

35. Directly behind the depot is Golden Eagle Syrup Company. The Patterson family,
out of their home, started this business in the early 1900s,

36. At railroad tracks, turn right, the two story Cannon building built in 1914 has
been converted on the inside to a modern office building while leaving the outside
with much the same appearance as 90 years ago. It was the home of Hodges
Department Store for many years before being remodeled.

37. 100 Temple, The Citizens Bank was constructed in 1911 and has been operated
by the Robertson family since that time.

38. Turn right on Temple to Columbus Street (3 short blocks)

39. Left on Columbus to 4" Avenue (only on right-5 blocks)
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40. Turn right, carefully cross Columbus and turn right on Columbus to return to
Temple Avenue (5 blocks0

41. Left on Temple to 1% Street (1 block)

42. Note: The Fayette County Courthouse was built in 1911 in the Greek Revival
style, it features ionic columns and a large central dome made popular in the US
first by Jefferson’s’ design for the US Capitol. On the lawn are several memorials
that might be of interest, one is a civil war memorial.

43. To the right of the courthouse is the First National Bank (now Regions) built in
the Greek Revival style, it features Doric columns and an elaborate comice
design. It dates back to 1912 when it was constructed after the fire. The bank
was owned by the Grimsley family from 1909-1994 and is the oldest bank in
Fayette County.

44, A block north of the courthouse is the old post office building, which is being
remodeled to house the city hall offices. The interior of the building has high
ceilings, marble counters and beautiful finished woodwork.

45. Left on 1% to 2" Avenue (2 block)

46. Right on 2" to Start/finish Point.
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BREIF HISTORY OF FAYETTE, AL

Fayette County was created in 1824. Prior to the county being officially
designated, the first courthouse was built just north of what we now call
“Five-Points”. The first town was located on the hill at “Five-Points” and
when the town was incorporated by an act of the state legislature in 1821 it
was named “Fayette Court House Town”. The name was changed to
Fayetteville in 1880. The first courthouse burned in 1854 and the new
courthouse building burned again in 1866.

In 1883 the railroad was being built from Birmingham, AL to Columbus,
MS. The surveyor, a Mr. James, came to the town leaders in Fayetteville
and told them he would bring the railroad through their town if they would
pay him $1,000.00. When they refused, he built the railroad about a mile
from Fayetteville at its location beside the present depot. At that time the

area was swampland and in the winter and spring when the water was high
the bullfrogs croaked incessantly. Some people jokingly referred to the area
as “Frog Level”. Once the railroad was completed, a small shack was
erected for the Post Office so the train could drop off mail as it passed
through the area. The first postmaster called the Post Office “Frog Level”.
Two years later, the second postmaster named the Post Office “Alfreda”

after his wife and the third postmaster changed the name to “Icy” in honor of

his daughter.

As businessmen began relocating from Fayetteville to build closer to the
railroad, a new town grew in its present location. In 1898, the town of
Fayetteville was dissolved and the new town was incorporated and named
“Latona”. The new courthouse was built in its present location, three blocks

from the railroad. Later, the citizens presented a petition to the Probate
Judge to hold an election to rename the town. An election was held and 47

people voted, 43 White men and 4 African American men. They chose
“Fayette” as the new name for the town.

By 1910, Fayette was a thriving town. The courthouse, which resembled an

English Castle, was located in the heart of the town. From there, one could
venture to the Drug Store, shop at Propst Brother’s Mercantile (which
offered everything for the Living and the Dead) or Robertson’s, dine at the
café , send a letter, spend the night in a room at the Turner Hotel for 25
cents, get up the next morning have a big breakfast, send a telegram of your
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arrival to your next destination and catch the train out of town, all within a
five or six block walk. Prior to 1908, saloons were a common sight in

Fayette. In the 19" century Fayette, saloons actually outnumbered churches.
But one had a hard time finding anything stronger than a Coca Cola by 1910.

One windy, March morning in 1911 everything changed. A fire, which
started in Dr. Young’s Drug Store, immediately spread to other buildings. A

bucket brigade quickly formed. but it soon became apparent the business
establishments were doomed. Fifty-four businesses were destroyed in less
than 1 and 2 hours. There was nothing left on Temple Avenue but a few
free standing single walls. Total estimated losses were $383,350.00. The
total insurance carried by all of the businesses combined was $43,850.00.

Rebuilding the courthouse was the first priority. It was decided to go with a
larger, grander design. The new courthouse was designed in the Greek
Revival style, made popular in the United States by President Jefferson

Davis’ design for the US Capitol Building. The original design called for
the courthouse to have identical entrances at all four entrances, but cost

overruns caused the elimination of the columns on all but the front entrance.

A celebration was held in March of 1912, almost a year to the day after the
fire, to observe the completion of the new courthouse. Barbecue was served

to the grand assembly who turned out.

The 1920’s began a time of change and prosperity for Fayette.

Today, looking North from the Depot, some of the buildings of interest
include:

Fayette’s tallest building has five stories and sits on the corner of 2", St.

S.E., across from the Depot Museum. It was built by W.M. Cannon and was
completed in 1928. However, it failed to meet the fire code for a public-use

building. Only the lower floors were ever used. The fifth floor has never
been used and still looks the same it did the day it was built, right down to
the oak stair rail. The building has been standing 78 years as of 2006 and is

being used as a storage building .

The Edgar Walker Building, now Collins Furniture, was originally a

Building Supply Store. In 1912, just when the finishing touches were being

completed on the new 3 story building, it burned again. Mr. Walker
immediately rebuilt the store as it stands today.
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Mr. Walker later became an architect and building contractor who built
mostly schools and churches. Many buildings still stand today as a
monument to his memory. A Methodist Church in West Palm Beach,
Florida, designed and built by Edgar Walker, remains the largest church of
Spanish Architecture in' the United States.

Bolling Pharmacy was built in 1912 after the fire and was originally the Post
Office.

North of Bolling Pharmacy, the shops which occupy the ground floor are
much like those of an earlier era. The Turner Hotel originally occupied the
second floor. The Hotel has been closed for nearly half a century. However,
many of the rooms are still wallpapered in floral designs no longer
manufactured. The walls are three layers of brick.

Fayette County Memorial Library was first started by a group of ladies in

1922. The first permanent structure in the present location was built in 1956
and has been added on to five times since that time. It houses over 44,000

volumes and has an extensive genealogy department.

The First United Methodist Church was built at its present site in 1900. The
present Church building was built in 1923. The Spanish Mission Style

building with a tile roof and bell tower makes a lively contrast to other
structures in town. The famous actress, Tallulah Bankhead and her family
donated to the Church the center front stained glass window.

The First Baptist Church was built in 1925 in the Federal Style. It replaced a

wooden church that was housed on the same site, also built in 1900.

The Fayette Civic Center and Art Museum began as the Fayette Elementary
School in 1931. In the 1980’s, after having been abandoned for many years,

the building was renovated to house the Civic Center and Art Museum. The
Museum houses 3,700 pieces of art, including one of the largest Folk Art

Collections in the United States. Noted Folk Artists on display include
many works of Jimmie L.ee Sudduth, Rev. Benjamin Perkins, and Sybil

Gibson.





image4.jpeg
The old Post Office building completed in 1939 is being remodeled to house
City Hall. The interjor of the building has high ceilings, marble counters
and beautifully finished woodwork.

The First National Bank (now Regions)began in 1900 and was purchased by

the Grimsley Family in 1909. The present building also_in the Greek Revival

style architecture with Doric column and elaborate cornice was completed in
1912.

The Citizens Bank began in 1911 by the Robertson Family, who still owns

and runs it today. The present building was constructed in the 1950°s and
renovated to incorporate the old Cannon Drug Store in 2002.

The two-story W.M. Cannon building completed in 1914 began as a
Mercantile business. It has been converted to a modern office building

inside while leaving the outside with much the same appearance as more
than 90 years ago. Toward the top of the building you can see the name
W.M. Cannon and the year 1914 etched in concrete.

The Depot, completed sometime around 1914, replaced the original structure
built in 1887 when the Georgia Pacific Railroad opened its rail line from

Birmingham, AL to Columbus, MS. The Depot was the only building in
downtown not destroyed by the fire of 1911. Industrious workers saved the
building by pulling wooden boxcars between town and the Depot. As the
boxcars caught fire, they were removed and replaced by new ones. This
process continued until the fire finally died out. The Depot was restored in
2002 and now houses the Historical Society’s vast collection of memorabilia
that everyone that lives in Fayette should enjoy seeing. We often have
visitors from other cities and even other States that enjoy their visit browsing

through the Museum.

Across from the Depot is the Golden Eagle Syrup Company. The Patterson
Family started the business in their home in 1928. The secret formula is a
honey-based syrup wonderful on buttered biscuits and in pecan pies.
Delicious!!
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WELCOME TO FAYETTE, AL
10KM VOLKSWALK

NOTE: The number in parentheses after an individual instruction refers to a Point of Interest (POI)
listed on the attached POI sheet.

1. Exit Start Point and turn left on 2" Avenue to 3 Street (2 blacks). (1) (2)

2. Righton 3" 1o Tem)]])le Avenue (1 block).

3. Left on Temple to 5™ Street (2 blocks). (3) (4) (5)

?4 g.l,eftk on 5 to 3" Avenue (3" Ave will first go off to right. Pass this and go to where 3™ Ave goes to the left)
ocks).

5. Left on 3" Ave to 3" Street (3 blocks).

6. Right on 3™ St. to Columbus Street (4 blocks).

7. Right on Columbus to 5™ Street (2 blocks).

8. Right on 5% to 3" Street/3" Way (4 blocks).

9. Right on 3" Street to 5" Street (short distance).

10. Left on 5" to 2™ Avenue (5 blocks). (6)

11. Left on 2" to 6™ Street (1 block).

12 Turn right, carefully cross 2" and proceed on 6™ to 5* Avenue NE (4 short blocks).

13. Left on 5" to 10" Street (1 short and one Ion%‘block). (@)

14. Left on 10", carefully crossing 2™ Ave, to 9" Street NW (6 blocks). (8)

15. Left on 9" to entrance of cemetery (1 block). (9)

16. Enter cemetery on paved road bearing right. Tour cemetery and return to 9% (10)

17. Return to 10" Street (1 block).

18, Right on 10" to 3" Avenue (1 block).

19. Left on 3" to 11 Street (2 blocks).

20. Right on 11" to 1" Avenue (1 long block).

21. Left on 1% and then shortly take first right to 2™ Avenue. (short distance).

22. Right on 2" (carefully crossing Temple as it enters 2" to Columbus Street. (12 blocks). (11)

23, Right on Columbus to Temple Avenue (2 blocks).

24. Left on Temple to Martin Luther King/1* Street (1 block). (12) (13) (14)

25, Left on MLKing/ 1 Street to 1 Avenue (1 block).

26. Turn right, cross MLKing/1® St and turn right on MLK/1*" to return to Temple Avenue (1 block).

27. Left on Temple to Historic Train Depot. (1 block). (15)

28. At railroad tracks, turn right, cross Temple and turn right on Temple to Columbus Street (3 short blocks).

(16) (17)

29. Left on Columbus to 4™ Avenue (only on right — 5 blocks).

30. Turn right, carefully cross Columbus and turn right on Columbus to return to Temple Avenue (5 blocks)

31. Left on Temple to 1% Street (1 block). (18) (19) (20)

32. Left on 1% to 2" Avenue (2 blocks).

33. Right on 2™ to Start/Finish Point.

SPECIAL THANKS TO BILL AND TONI ROBERTSON, MARK BROWN,
HERB AND FRAN LOWE, WAYNE DUNN AND ANNE HAMMER
FOR THEIR GRACIOUS ASISTANCE IN ESTABLISHING THIS WALK
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